
Posted by Brandi Schuerger, Assistant City Clerk, October 10, 2025, 2025 at 4:00 p.m.               Accommodations Upon Request 
     107 W. Main Street, Smithville, MO 64089                                                                                

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting 
 

October 14, 2025 
 

7:00 p.m. – City Hall Council Chambers and Via Videoconference 
 
 
 

Meetings are live streamed on the City’s YouTube page. 
 The recordings are posted to social media and the City's website within 24 hours of the meeting.  
 

1. Call to Order 
 

2. Approve the August 12, 2025, Planning Commission Minutes 
 

3. Staff Report 
 

 Consultant Presentation of Final Draft of 169 South Employment Overlay  
 

4. Public Hearing – 169 South Employment Center Overlay Ordinance 
 
The purpose of this hearing is to take public comment on the proposed Overlay District rules and 
regulations.   
 

5. 169 South Employment Center Overlay Ordinance Recommendation 
 
The Commission shall discuss the proposed final ordinance and make its’ recommendation to the 
Board of Aldermen.   

    
6. Public Hearing – Smithville MarketPlace Replat Lot 6A and 7 

 
The purpose of this hearing is to take public comment on the proposed Final Plat. 
 

7. Smithville MarketPlace Replat of Lots 6A and 7 
 
Applicant seeks to create one additional lot and adjust the boundaries of two others. 
 
 
 

8. Public Hearing – RiverPlace Rezoning from R-1B to R-1D and R-2 
 
Rezoning the Riverplace subdivision development at approximately 210 KK Hwy from 166 Lots of 
R-1B to 166 Lots of R-1D and R-2. 



 

Posted by Brandi Schuerger, Assistant City Clerk,   October 10, 2025  4:00 p.m.            Accommodations Upon Request 
107 W. Main St., Smithville, MO  64089 
 

 
9. Rezone 210 KK Hwy from R-1B to R-1D and R-2 

 
Applicant seeks to rezone the subdivision land of Riverplace subdivision created in March of 2006 
that was zoned R-1 in accordance with a 166 lot Preliminary Plat (effectively R-1B) to a new 
subdivision of 166 Lots with R-1D and R-2 lots. 

 
 Staff and Applicant request a postponement of the subdivision preliminary plat (Items 10 and 11) 

review to allow MoDOT to weigh in on the Traffic Study for the proposed subdivision. 
 

10. Public Hearing – RiverPlace Subdivision to create 166 lots.  
 
Applicant seeks to reorganize the lots and sizes of the 2006 subdivision of Riverplace to updated 
standards of our zoning and subdivision Ordinances by changing the sizes of the existing lots to 
accommodate the same number of lots, but would allow up to 200 dwellings in a combination of 
R-1D and R-2 lots.  (106 R-1D and 50 R-2 lots. 
 

11. Preliminary Plat – Riverplace Subdivision – 166 Lots 
 
Applicant seeks to preliminarily plat a new (updated) subdivision to be called Riverplace with 166 
lots in accordance with a rezoning of the land. 
 

12. Adjourn 



Not
Yet 

App
rov

ed

SMITHVILLE PLANNING COMMISSION 

REGULAR SESSION 
August 12, 2025 

7:00 P.M. 
City Hall Council Chambers and Via Videoconference 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

Secretary Rob Scarborough called the meeting to order at 7:01 p.m. 

A quorum of the Commission was present: Alderman Melissa Wilson, Terry 
Hall, Billy Muessig, Rob Scarborough and Mayor Damien Boley. John 
Chevalier and John Wallace were absent. 

Staff present: Jack Hendrix, William Stubbs and Brandi Schuerger. 

2.   MINUTES

The July 8, 2025, Regular Session Meeting Minutes were moved for approval 
by HALL, Seconded by ALDERMAN WILSON.  

      Ayes 4, Noes 0, Abstain 1 (SCARBOROUGH) Motion carried.  

3. STAFF REPORT

HENDRIX reported:   

We will not have a Planning and Zoning meeting in September. 

Our October meeting will have the following on the agenda:

Request for Rezoning and Preliminary Plat for a new subdivision off
of KK Hwy.
Request for Rezoning at 1503 E Main Street. They are asking to
change the zoning to B-3 and would build 10 cabins for a rental
business.



Not 
Yet 

App
rov

ed

 Subdivision request at the Smithville Marketplace to create 3 new 
lots. Auto Zone and Les Schwab Tires have been in discussions about 
buying this land. 

 
Also possible on our October agenda we could have a Subdivision request 
for the Willow Creek Subdivision off Second Creek Road and Lowman Road.  
 
We have been notified that a new business will lease some space from the 
Outrig Storage center. They are proposing to buy land near this storage 
center to build their own facility.  
 
Phase 2 of Fairview Crossing South is under construction now.  
 
We received an application to build 252 apartments in 4 buildings at 
Fairview Crossing South. This applicant has decided to pull their application 
and step away from this project. The developer, Shane Crees, is reaching 
out to another applicant that was interested in this project. 
 
The 110 W Main Street TIF project is under construction now. The TIF 
agreement requires them to have construction completed by August 2026 
and they are on track to meet that.  
 
The new parking lot behind City Hall is mostly complete.  
 
We anticipate 13 building permits coming forward soon for the single-family 
homes in the new Clay Creek Meadows Subdivision off of Lake Meadows 
Drive. They will start infrastructure work for Clay Creek Meadows Phase 2 
soon.  
 
We sent out certified letters to each property owner of the land involved in 
tonight’s agenda items and also put public notices in the newspaper. One 
property owner did contact him.  
 
  

4. PUBLIC HEARING – 169 SOUTH EMPLOYMENT OVERLAY DISTRICT 
 
 

Public hearing opened. 
 
 

No Public Comment. 



Not 
Yet 

App
rov

ed

Public hearing closed. 

 
5. 169 SOUTH EMPLOYMENT OVERLAY DISTRICT DISCUSSION 

 

MUESSIG made a motion to open the floor for discussion. HALL seconded the 
motion. 
 
Ayes 5, Noes 0, Motion carried. 
 

Julie Kruse from Snyder and Associates presented the draft ordinance for 
the 169 South Employment Overlay District to the Planning and Zoning 
Commission. She explained that the overlay will allow more flexible 
development options while maintaining base zoning districts (R-1, B-1 thru 
3), intentionally excluding industrial zoning. The plan envisions a mix of uses 
with higher density near Highway 169, stepping down to lower density 
residential areas, with emphasis on attracting technology, bioscience, and 
educational facilities. The draft includes provisions for mixed-use buildings, 
live-work spaces, and micro-manufacturing (limited to 5,000 sq ft) while 
preserving green space.  

The Planning Commission discussed density concerns in a proposed mixed-
use development area, with commission members questioning how to 
monitor occupancy and parking issues. Hendrix explained that building 
codes, fire codes, and the proposed ordinance's square footage limitations 
would help manage density. The commission reviewed zoning classifications 
(R-1A through R-3) and discussed where live-work spaces would be 
permitted, noting that more restrictive zoning in certain areas aims to 
maintain Smithville's small-town feel while allowing higher density near 
commercial areas. They also discussed affordable housing incentives, with 
suggestions that workforce housing could help local businesses retain 
employees who currently commute from outside Smithville. 

Mayor Boley asked if our sign ordinance will need to be updated. Hendrix 
informed that an Alderman has requested to bring forward sign code 
updates to the Board of Aldermen with a work session to discuss concepts. 
Changes made will have to come back to this commission for approval. 



Not 
Yet 

App
rov

ed

Hendrix explained that Julie and himself will clean up the draft overlay 
district document based on feedback, including fixing misspellings and 
duplicated words. This Commission will review the updated 169 South 
Employment Overlay District ordinance at the October Planning Commission 
meeting. 

 
6. ADJOURN 

 
 MAYOR BOLEY made a motion to adjourn. MUESSIG seconded the motion. 

 
VOICE VOTE: UNANIMOUS 
 

SECRETARY SCARBOROUGH declared the session adjourned at 8:09 p.m. 



BILL NO.  3069-25             ORDINANCE 3XXX-25 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTIONS OF CHAPTER 400 OF THE  
ZONING CODE AUTHORIZING A NEW OVERLAY DISTRICT REGULATIONS 

 
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission advertised and held a public hearing on August 
12, 2025 related to proposed changes to various provisions of the zoning codes that 
pertain to a new 169 South Employment Overlay District; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission again advertised and held a second public 
hearing on October 14, 2025 related to proposed changes to various provisions of the 
zoning codes that pertain to the Overlay District; and, 
 
WHEREAS, following the public hearings, the Planning and Zoning Commission 
recommended approval of the proposed ordinance; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission has provided its’ statement required by 
§400.560.B of the Code, which is attached as Exhibit B; 
 
WHEREAS, the Smithville Board of Aldermen deems it to be in the best interest of the 
City of Smithville to adopt said amendments to provide for additional affordable housing 
options and to encourage aging in place living in accordance with the Comprehensive 
Plan. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE 
CITY OF SMITHVILLE, MISSOURI AS FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION 1.  Chapter 400 of the Code of Ordinance is amended by deleting Section 
400.025 regarding the Establishment of Districts in its’ entirety and replacing it with the 
following new Section 400.025: 
 
SECTION 400.025:  ESTABLISHMENT OF DISTRICTS 
 
The jurisdictional area is hereby divided into fifteen zoning districts and three overlay 
districts, which are designated as follows: 
 
"A-1" Agricultural District 
“A-R” Agricultural-Residential District 
"R-1A" Single-Family Suburban Dwelling District 
"R-1B" Single-Family Dwelling District 



“R-1C” Single-Family Urban Dwelling District 
"R-1D" Single-Family Small Lot Dwelling District 
“R-1M” Mobile or Manufactured Dwelling District 
"R-2" Two-Family Dwelling District 
"R-3" Multiple-Family Dwelling District 
"B-1" Neighborhood Business District 
"B-2" Non-Retail Business District 
"B-3" General Business District 
"B-4" Central Business District 
"I-1" Light Industrial District 
"I-2" Heavy Industrial District 
 “P” - Planned Development Overlay District 
“FP” Floodplain Overlay District 
“EO” South 169 Employment Overlay District 
 
SECTION 2.  Chapter 400 of the Code of Ordinance is amended by deleting Section 
400.220 regarding Overlay Districts in its’ entirety and replacing it with the following 
new Section 400.220 to be read as follows: 

SECTION 400.220:  PLANNED DEVELOPMENT OVERLAY DISTRICT 

A.  Intent 

Any of the zoning districts mentioned above shall have a separate and distinct 
counterpart known and herein referred to as a “Planned Development”.  Such Planned 
Development shall be designated by adding thereto the designation of “P” to the 
underlying district, such as B-3-P.  The Planned Development shall be for the purpose 
of permitting and regulating the uses permitted in the equivalent district and further 
provide for and encourage latitude and flexibility in the location of buildings, structures, 
roads, drives, variations in yards, open spaces, etc. subsequent to final approval of the 
plan.  The result is to allow development of tracts of land to their fullest extent and at 
the same time observe the general intent and spirit of these regulations.  The purpose 
of this district is to also provide for and encourage the appropriate grouping of buildings 
to reduce vehicle trips, maximize open space and for the beautification of the district. 

Generally, the height and bulk of buildings, the amount of open space, the 
concentration of people and traffic and the parking and loading requirements shall be 
equal to those in the underlying district classification.  The uses permitted in the 
Planned Development shall be the same as in the underlying district unless the property 
is located within a City-initiated Overlay District.  In City initiated Overlay Districts, the 
uses permitted are those contained within the specific district regulations and those 
uses specifically identified in_________.  In all other Planned Development Overlay 



Districts, variations and departures from the standard requirements of the underlying 
district may be permitted.  Each building need not front onto a public street, and more 
than one principal building may be located on one lot.  Buildings may be constructed on 
platted tracts which are smaller than the minimum lot size requirements, where other 
adjacent, maintained permanent open space is provided.  Buildings may be grouped in 
clusters or around courts and may be served by private drives in lieu of public streets.  
Buildings may be located closer to lot-lines than otherwise permitted provided such 
buildings are architecturally suitable for such a relationship to adjoining buildings or 
property. 

B. Creating a Planned Development Overlay District 

Planned Development Overlay Districts come in two types:  City Initiated and Private 
Initiated Districts.  In City Initiated Districts, the City shall create the regulations 
concerning uses as well as the allowable variations to standard district requirements, 
similar to those in Private Initiated Districts.  City Initiated Districts do not change the 
underlying zone districts of the land contained within such district.  When development 
occurs within a City Initiated District, the developer shall include such rezoning request 
that meets the underlying proposed uses as described within the Conceptual Plan 
submitted.   

1.  A tract of land may be zoned to a Planned Development district by the 
applicant in conjunction with a conceptual development plan.  For applicants 
seeking Planned Development District zoning or amendments, a conceptual 
development plan must be submitted to the Commission for approval.  The 
applicant shall pay a fee of $250.00 and submit an application that contains, 
at a minimum, the following elements: 

 a. The boundaries of the tract to be zoned and the area adjacent for a 
distance of 250 feet. 

b. The existing and proposed topography with contour intervals not greater 
than ten (10) feet intervals on a plan at a scale of one-inch equals 200 feet 
or larger.  The proposed topography shall be clearly delineated on the plan. 

 c. Proposed location, number and arrangement of buildings, structures, 
parking areas, existing and proposed streets, drives, open spaces, drainage 
landscaping, and other reasonable information required by the Commission.  
Sufficient approximate dimensions to indicate the relationship between 
building, streets, drives, and property lines should be on the plans as well. 



 d. The plan shall be accompanied by a plat giving a full legal description of 
the boundaries of the property. 

 e. A draft of Conditions, covenants and restrictions (CCR’s) easements, 
associations and maintenance agreements as well as specifications for 
ingress/egress to the property and any other legal requirements which will 
run with the property. 

 f. Preliminary elevation and plan drawings of proposed buildings which 
sufficiently depict the architectural theme of the project. 

 g. Preliminary Signage Plan that identifies the materials, sizes, heights and 
locations proposed to be used on signs within the project.  The Signage Plan 
shall be consistent with the overall architectural theme of the buildings and 
project. 

 h. A list of all property owners within 185 feet of the boundaries of the 
proposed area. 

2. The commission shall hold a public hearing on the conceptual development 
plan and after such public hearing shall approve, approve with conditions, 
or disapprove the conceptual development plan.  At such time as the 
conceptual development plan is approved, approved with conditions or 
disapproved by the commission, the same shall be forwarded on to the 
Board of Aldermen for final action.  The procedures for noticing and holding 
a public hearing for a conceptual development plan shall be the same as 
specified in Section 400.550, et seq.  The approval of the conceptual 
development plan is in addition to, not in substitution of, the required 
statutory rezoning process. 

3. In reviewing conceptual development plans for a Planned Development 
Overlay District, the commission shall consider the requirements in the Site 
Plan Review provisions in Section 400.350 - .400 when evaluating the 
following: 

 a.  Topography: to ensure the site is suitable for development, and 
buildings are located and arranged in appropriate areas. 

 b. Parking: to ensure the proposed development contains an adequate 
amount of parking and is located in an appropriate area or adequately 
screened.  Generally, the parking should conform to the required number of 
spaces appropriate to the development type as contained in Section 



400.420 - 450.  The commission may allow a deviation from these parking 
requirements should the applicant show an adequate amount of parking 
exists. 

 c. Setbacks: to ensure buildings provide for adequate light, air, and privacy 
protection by providing appropriate proportion between buildings, and 
adequate separation between buildings and adjoining properties. 

 d. Architecture: to ensure the architectural theme is compatible and 
consistent throughout the project and is reasonably compatible with 
surrounding developments. 

 e. Site plan: to ensure the location and arrangement of buildings, 
signs and other structures are appropriate for the site, existing and 
proposed streets, drives and public ways are arranged appropriately and to 
ensure site drainage has been adequately addressed 

 f. Landscaping; to ensure the development provides adequate landscaping 
to provide a pleasant environment, to enhance the building’s appearance; 
to ensure existing significant trees are adequately protected. 

 g.  Any other feature or issue associated with the state zoning and 
planning enabling legislation or the Comprehensive Plan for the City of 
Smithville for which the commission feels is appropriate and relevant to the 
development of the site. 

4. Prior to approving a conceptual development plan for the purposes of this 
section, the commission shall make the following findings: 

 a. That the commission has reviewed the conceptual development 
plan with consideration of the issues contained in Subsection three (3) 
above; and 

 b. That the conceptual development plan is in conformance with the 
comprehensive land use plan and other appropriate sections of the Code of 
Ordinances; and 

 c. That the conceptual development plan provides for an organized 
and unified system of land use intensities which are compatible with the 
surrounding areas; and 



 d. That the proposed development adequately protects the health, 
safety and general welfare of future and existing residents and property 
owners in and around the development. 

5. Upon final approval of the plan and the zoning or rezoning of the tract as 
required by law, building permits may be issued and conformance with the 
plan and all supporting documentation is mandatory.  Substantial deviation 
from the plan shall require resubmittal to the commission and Board in the 
same manner as the original procedure. 

C. City Initiated Overlay Districts 

The following is a list of the City Initiated Overlay Districts.  The rules and regulations 
for such district(s) are available as a separate district document, with it’s text and 
requirements having the full force and effect of all other zoning requirements, as 
amended by that document. 

1. 169 South Employment District  



Exhibit A

 



Intent:  The 169 South Employment Overlay District, (169 SE-O) located on the west 
side of HWY 169 in the southern portion of Smithville’s municipality, creates an 
opportunity to bolster local economic development opportunities. The overlay district 
intends to provide flexibility within the Comprehensive Plan’s Future Land Use Map 
should future development provide substantial employment opportunities in this area.   

While the Future Land Use map designates the intended future use as Mixed-Use High-
Density Residential, the 169 South Employment Overlay District also encourages 
additional commercial, and flex uses potentially in-lieu of residential uses. Smithville 
encourages future development in this district that maximizes benefits for the City of 
Smithville and its residents. These benefits may include but are not limited to, increases 
in employment opportunities, higher-paying jobs, and fiscal returns for the City. 

Definitions: For the purpose of this Plan, all previously defined terms in Section 
400.075 of the Code shall apply except certain terms or words used herein shall be 
interpreted or defined as follows, unless the context clearly indicates otherwise: 

Common Open Space: A centrally located, functional open area accessible to all 
residents of the development, planned for passive or active recreation. 

 
Cottage Industry and Retail: A light manufacturing, assembly or processing that 
is appropriate for commercial contexts and may include retail to customers to 
participate in the process or sale of goods produced on site. Generally limited to 
1,000 sq. ft. of building area. Could include ‘maker space’, a facility generally open 
to the public where tools and space can be used for light manufacturing, processing, 
or assembly using woodworking, welding, ceramic kilns, or other tools at a small 
businesses scale. 

 
Dwelling, Live-Work: A residential dwelling unit that allows an integrated 
permissible nonresidential use. Residential and commercial spaces must be occupied 
by the same tenant, and no portion of the unit may be rented or sold separately. 
Residential shall comprise no less than sixty percent of the gross floor area. 
 
Indoor Recreation and Entertainment: A use that provides amusement and  
recreational activities indoors 
 
Pocket Residential Development (PRD): A clustered housing development 
consisting of dwelling units around shared open space and amenities.  
 
Research Industry: Companies, primarily focused on science, technology, and 
innovation, can establish offices and laboratories to conduct research and 
development activities, may be partnered or supported by a university or college to 
leverage access to specialized facilities, talent pools, and cutting-edge research 
capabilities, allows collaborative work spaces to foster innovation within the 



industry; serves as a hub for technology-based businesses to grow and develop new 
ideas through shared infrastructure and expertise.  
 
Residential, Mixed-Use: A development containing residential and institutional, 
commercial, or other non-residential uses for the residents or the public. Non-
residential use(s) shall comprise no less than seventy-five percent of the building. 

 
Permitted Uses: The following table outlines permitted uses and uses that may be 
allowed with the consideration and approval of a conceptual plan with Overlay Zoning 
District. All uses are subject to requirements and/or restrictions outlined within that 
zoning district section of the chapter, including height, lot area, distance from adjacent 
uses, landscaping requirements, etc. 
 
 



 



 
 
 



 

 
 
P = Permitted 

 = Discretionary Approval through Zoning Overlay Application Review 
 
Concept Plan/Planned Development Standards: The 169 SE-O district allows for 
mixing residential environments with workplaces and services in a manner that 
encourages these uses to occur in a pedestrian-oriented manner and varying build-out 
sizes rather than in continuous strips along arterial streets. Development in the 169 SE-
O district must accommodate transportation systems, adjacent environments, and 
pedestrian movement. The purpose of the 169 SE-O Development Standards is to allow 
a preliminary review of a proposed development before substantial technical work has 
been undertaken. A concept plan shall generally include plans and supporting documents 
that address the following:  

A. Development Process. The approval process within the Overlay has been modified to 
address site size and the types of uses permitted on each site. Building Design 
Conformity finding is required with all Site Development Plans. A Concept Plan will be 
required for developments larger than two acres to ensure the primary purpose of 
commercial development is accomplished in conjunction with the addition of housing. 
The Concept Plan grants additional flexibility for the configuration of a site and for the 
arrangement of uses. No Concept Plan for Mixed-use development shall be approved 
that does not specify appropriate commercial tenant space sizes, orientation, and total 
square footage in a project. An appropriate mix of commercial and residential 
development will be evaluated on a case-by-case basis to ensure a mixed-use project 
fulfills the redevelopment goals of the 169 South Employment Overlay District (169 SE-
O) for commercial development that incorporates community commercial uses and 
uses that are complementary to the overall vision of the overlay.   

 
1. A plan outlining the general location, design characteristics, and functions of all 

proposed streets, stormwater management, open spaces, civic spaces, and 
circulation networks, whether public, common, or private, that will create the 



public realm for the plan. 

2. A Concept Plan will be required to identify specific land uses and their density 
intensity, block and lot patterns, building types and scale, materials and design 
characteristics, and other building and site design elements. This plan shall have 
a particular emphasis on how these elements relate to one another and where 
transitions between these elements occur at a parcel or block scale both within 
the development and in coordination with abutting property. The land use and 
development plan shall specifically identify where development standards may 
differ from those otherwise applicable through the base zoning districts and 
general development requirements of the Development Code. A conceptual 
development plan must be submitted to the Commission for approval. The 
applicant shall pay a non-refundable deposit of two hundred fifty dollars 
($250.00) and submit an application that contains, at a minimum, the following 
elements: 

Concept Plan Requirements: 
a. A proposed development schedule. 

b. The boundaries of the tract to be zoned and the area adjacent for a distance 
of two hundred fifty feet (250) feet. 

c. The existing and proposed topography with contour intervals not greater 
than ten (10) feet intervals on a plan at a scale of one (1) inch equals two 
hundred (200) feet or larger. The proposed topography shall be clearly 
delineated on the plan. 

d. Proposed location, number and arrangement of buildings, structures, parking 
areas, existing and proposed streets, drives, open spaces, drainage 
landscaping, and other reasonable information required by the Commission.  

e. Sufficient approximate dimensions to indicate the relationship between 
building, streets, drives and property lines should be on the plans as well.  

f. A circulation Plan identifying existing and proposed vehicular, pedestrian, 
bicycle, and other circulation facilities and location including the location of 
parking and loading facilities. 

g. The plan shall be accompanied by a plat giving a full legal description of the 
boundaries of the property. 

h. Schematic architectural plans and elevations drawings of proposed buildings 
that indicate building height, bulk, and materials. 

i. Preliminary signage plan that identifies the materials, sizes, heights and 
locations proposed to be used on signs within the project. The signage plan 
shall be consistent with the overall architectural theme of the buildings and 
project. 



j. A list of all property owners within one hundred eighty-five (185) feet of the 
proposed area's boundaries. 

k. A draft of conditions, covenants and restrictions (CCRs) easements, 
associations and maintenance agreements as well as specifications for 
ingress/egress to the property and any other legal requirements which will 
run with the property.  

Single Family Code(s): 

Single-family residential development will be permitted as allowed in Sections 400.100 -
400.120 when it is developed as a buffer adjacent to open space and green space or as 
a transition from larger suburban and agricultural residential to higher-density 
development.  

Residential Development may be the same as in the underlying district when located in 
a residential development only in use. Variations and departures from the standard 
requirements of the underlying district may be permitted. Each residential unit need not 
front onto a public street. Buildings may be constructed on platted tracts that are smaller 
than the minimum lot size requirements where other adjacent, maintained permanent 
open space is provided. Buildings may be grouped in clusters or around courtyards and 
may be served by private drives in lieu of public streets. Buildings may be located closer 
to lot lines than otherwise permitted provided such buildings are architecturally suitable 
for such a relationship to adjoining buildings or property. 

Additionally, Pocket Neighborhood Development (PND) may be permitted through the 
approval of a concept plan. PNDs allow a variety of housing choices that may serve a 
diverse population in terms of age, income, household makeup, and affordability while 
providing a sense of community and compatibility. They allow for flexibility in density 
and lot development standards. PNDs will be defined by the inclusion of the following 
design features: 

a. A clustered group of 4 – 10 dwellings per cluster and oriented around a common 
open space. 

b. A common open space area that is usable for active and passive use. 
c.  Residential Units shall be designed with porch-fronted dwellings with auto 

access through an alley. Where no reasonable alternative exists, dwellings may 
have direct access to a street. 

d. Live-work dwellings may be allowed. 
e. Dwelling unit size should vary and be as small as 850 square feet. 

Permitted Uses in a PND 
a. Single Family Detached 
b. Single Family Attached/Duplex 
c. Townhouses/Rowhouses 



d. Live-Work Units 
e. Accessory Dwelling Units. 

General Development Standards: 

1) Maximum Density: 7-12 Units/Acre or up to 2 times the base density of the 
underlying zone. 

2) Lot Coverage: Maximum 50% lot coverage for structures, with a minimum of 25% 
dedicated to common open space, provided stormwater requirements are met. 

3) Building Height: Maximum 3 stories. 
4) Setbacks:  

a) Front: 5 feet to porch, minimum* 
* In a cluster, the front yard shall be the side to the common open space. A 
street shall be considered the front yard when a dwelling unit faces a street. 

b) Side: 5 feet, if constructed in accordance with Fire Code 
c) Rear: 10 feet 
d) Between structures: Minimum 10 feet 

5) Open Space Requirement: At least 400 square feet of common open space per 
unit. 

6) Parking Requirements:  
a) Minimum 0.75 spaces per unit. 
b) Guest parking at 1 space per 4 units. 
c) Shared or off-site parking may be permitted with appropriate agreements. 

7) Access: Developments must be served by a public or private street with pedestrian-
friendly pathways. 

General Single Family Design Standards in a PND 

1. Architectural Character: Homes should incorporate varied rooflines, porches, 
and complementary materials to create visual interest. In order to preserve a 
sense of safety a minimum of one residential dwelling window shall face the 
common space area. 

2. Front Porch: Front porches are viewed as a key element to foster neighborhood 
connections. They should be designed with placement, scale, size, and relation 
to private and public spaces. Each ground-level dwelling shall have a porch 
oriented toward the common open space or street and not be enclosed. Front 
Porches must be a minimum of 5 feet in depth. 

3. Street-Facing Facades: All street-facing facades shall include one of the 
following: a porch, windows, dormers, building articulation with a minimum 
depth of one foot, or changes in exterior building materials or paint colors. 

4. Common Areas: Developments must provide communal gathering spaces, such 
as courtyards, gardens, or playgrounds. Each cluster requires a minimum of 400 
square feet of common open space per dwelling unit. Parking areas, yard 
setbacks, private open space, and driveways do not qualify as common open 



space. At least 75 percent of the dwelling units shall be within 60 feet measured 
from the nearest entrance of the dwelling. The common open space shall have 
dwellings abutting at least two sides. Shared features within common areas 
should be considered and could include BBQs, Grills, seating areas, gardens, and 
other similar amenities. 

5. Fencing & Landscaping: Perimeter fencing is allowed but must not exceed 4 
feet in height in the front yard. All other fences shall comply with Section 
400.350 Landscaping must buffer development edges. 

6. Lighting: Low-intensity lighting to minimize light pollution and ensure 
pedestrian safety. 

7. Pedestrian Network. Individual PND clusters shall be connected through a 
network of pedestrian pathways, including sidewalks along public streets, mid-
block walkways, and other connections where appropriate. Each PND cluster may 
be limited to residents and their guests. 

Open Space and Natural Areas: Developments within the 169 South Employment 
Overlay District are expected to provide some open space in formal and informal design 
and use. These areas can serve as areas for intentional and organized use or preserve 
natural features as they exist for passive use. A minimum of 5 percent and a maximum 
of 15 percent of developed area, net of public street right of ways, shall be in open 
space. Civic spaces in the form of greens, squares, and plazas 
 
Environmentally sensitive open space may be protected against building development 
and environmental damage by conveying to the municipality, association, or land trust 
an open space servitude restricting the area in perpetuity from development and certain 
characteristics shall be preserved such as: retaining and preserving pre-existing or 
natural water features, sites should be designed in a manner that preserves specimen 
trees and significant groups of mature deciduous trees, and developments should adapt 
itself, as much as possible, to the existing topography to minimize the amount of 
grading necessary to achieve a viable street network. 
 
The following will be allowed as open space and be incorporated when appropriate: 

a. Environmental corridors 
b. Protected natural areas 
c. Community parks and trails 
d. Streams, wetlands, and other water bodies, and 
e. Stormwater detention/retention facilities 

Street Layout & Design: To increase the effectiveness of walkability, developments 
shall promote walking and bicycling, connecting neighborhoods to each other and to 
destinations such as employment, open space, and retail areas. 



A. Block pattern. New development shall establish a regular pattern of blocks to the 
extent feasible to avoid creating large "superblocks" that limit pedestrian, bicycle, 
and vehicular circulation. When adjacent to existing developments, efforts shall be 
made to match established block patterns. On large sites pedestrian, bicycle, and 
vehicular circulation access to surrounding neighborhoods shall be maintained to the 
maximum extent feasible.  

B. Sidewalks required. All development within the overlay shall provide a network of 
on-site pedestrian walkways that provide and encourage walkability. Sidewalks shall 
be installed on both sides of all arterials, collector streets, and local streets pursuant 
to the standards of City. Connectivity is a crucial element in implementing the goals 
related to the overlay initiative that the City is committed to. Sidewalks shall be 5 ft. 
in width in all instances with a 6 ft. planting strip, except those located within 
mixed-use developments, commercial areas, or that are part of the City trail system. 
In these instances, sidewalks shall be 10 ft in width. 

C. Off-site pedestrian connections. In high automobile traffic areas, pedestrian 
walkways and crosswalks in public streets shall be identified to motorists and 
pedestrians through the use of one or more of the following methods:  

1. Changing paving color;  
2. Painted crosswalks; or  

3. Stamped concrete. 

  
D. Pedestrian circulation routes along storefronts shall be emphasized with special 

design features that establish them as areas, where pedestrians are physically 
separated from the flow of vehicular traffic and/or, are protected from the elements. 
Techniques shall include one or more of the following:  

1. Arcades, porticos, or other shade structures;  

2. Pedestrian light features;  

Mixed Use 
Mixed-use developments are highly desirable within the 169 South Employment Overlay 
District (169 SE-O). These areas shall be developed and designed as activity centers 
that include a mix of uses within buildings adjacent to streets. Required parking shall be 
located at the rear and sides of buildings or on the street. In specific instances, it may 
be provided in front of buildings when other options are not viable. The following 
regulations shall apply to building design and site layout: 
  
A. Building Orientation.  

1. Individual buildings.   
a. At least one operable entrance shall be located on the portion of the 



structure facing the primary street. 
b. Each street facing façade shall provide a minimum of thirty percent 

transparency. On a corner lot each street-facing façade. 
c. For buildings with active ground floor commercial uses, transparency must 

allow direct views into the primary business space.  
d. Non-residential use(s) shall be limited to the bottom two floors of a 

building. 
 

2. Multi-building developments.  
a. Buildings shall be organized to promote a compact pattern of 

development, pedestrian-friendly spaces, streetscapes, and screen parking 
areas.  

b. Buildings shall be arranged and grouped so that their primary orientation 
complements one another and adjacent, existing development by:  

c. Entrance orientation. 
To the maximum extent feasible, the principal building entrance shall face 
an adjacent public street, plaza, public walkway.  

d. In cases where the principal entrance does not face the principal street, 
the entrance shall be connected to the street and adjacent parking areas 
with a sidewalk(s).  

3. Outparcel development.  
a. To the maximum extent practicable, out parcels and their buildings shall 

be clustered to define street edges, entry points, and considerations for 
seating between buildings. Typical pad side development on out parcels 
in a widely-spaced pattern along streets is strongly discouraged.  

b. Spaces between buildings on out parcels shall be improved to provide 
small-scale pedestrian amenities such as pedestrian connections, 
gathering spaces, or well-landscaped parking areas. 
 

B. Building Design 
 

A variety of architectural features and building materials is encouraged to give each 
building or group of buildings a distinct character. 
  

1. In order to achieve harmonious design throughout architectural design 
guidelines shall be submitted with the concept plan. 

2. These guidelines are intended to serve as a minimum standard for 
architectural design.  Alternative architectural designs that meet the spirit and 
intent of this ordinance may be submitted for consideration. 

 a.   The exterior finish of material on all facades shall be limited to brick, 
natural stone, wood siding, cementitious siding and/or stucco. Additional 
materials not listed here can be approved by the Director of Planning 



provided they are not the primary building material of the overall exterior 
finish.  

b.    The architectural features, material and the articulation of a façade of a 
building shall be continued on all sides visible from a public street or 
dedicated public open space. 

c. The building design shall include architectural details to create visual 
interest and design diversity, such as transoms, brick solider course, 
corbel, cornice, lintels, projecting window bays, inset windows, canopies, 
parapet variation.  

d. The front façade of the principal building on any lot in in a commercial or 
industrial base zoned district shall face onto a public street or public open 
space. 

e. The front façade should not be oriented to face directly toward an off-
street parking facility, other than on-street parking. 

f. For commercial buildings, a minimum of thirty-five (35) percent of the 
front-facing on the ground floor shall be glass (transparent), including 
window or door openings allowing a view into and out of the interior.   

g. Structures on opposite sides of the same street are encouraged to follow 
similar design guidelines in order to foster compatibility between 
developments. This provision shall not apply to buildings bordering civic 
uses.  

h. Buildings and parking placement within mixed-use and multi-family 
developments should be arranged to create appropriately scaled 
continuous building facades with as few non-pedestrian oriented breaks 
as possible. 

i. Building wall materials may be combined on each façade only 
horizontally, with the heavier generally below the lighter.   Walls along 
the street shall be made of brick or block and stucco or other material to 
match the facade of the principal building.  

j. No exterior metal siding shall be allowed.   
k. The facades on retail frontages shall be detailed as storefronts and glazed 

no less than thirty-five (35) percent of the sidewalk-level story. 
l. Exterior mechanical equipment shall be screened from view to the 

satisfaction of the Planning Commission. Rooftop mechanical equipment 
shall not be visible from the street, adjoining lot or adjacent street. 

(i) For all uses, except for single-family and two-family dwellings, all 
mechanical units located on the ground shall be screened from 
ground level view from abutting streets by a sight obscuring fence 
and/or shrubs that achieve a minimum opacity of approximately 



75%. Such shrubs shall be at least 75% the height of the mechanical 
equipment at the time of installation. Screening shall be at least 6 
inches higher than the average height of the mechanical equipment 
at full growth. Fences shall be equal to the average height of the 
equipment. Electric vehicle chargers and their associated cabinets are 
not a mechanical unit and are not subject to screening. 

  
(ii) All mechanical equipment mounted on roofs, or on the walls of 
buildings, shall be screened from the ground level view from both 
abutting streets and of any abutting residentially zoned lot with 
materials that are the same color as the principal siding or trim 
materials of the exterior of the building.  Required screening shall be 
completely opaque and shall ensure that at least 75% of the height of 
the mechanical unit is screened or otherwise unseen.  

C. Parking Standards.  
Parking shall be provided in accordance with the Smithville Parking Ordinance, 
notwithstanding the modified parking requirements of this zoning district. Uses not 
listed below are subject to the following standard parking requirements: 

 1 Bedroom Dwelling Unit 0.8 spaces/DU 
2 Bedroom Dwelling Unit 1 space/DU 
3 Bedroom Dwelling Unit 2.5 spaces/DU 
4 Bedroom Dwelling Unit 3.0 spaces/DU 
General Office 3 spaces /1000 sq. ft. 
Medical Office 6 spaces /1000 sq. ft 
 Retail and Service-Standalone  3 spaces/1000 sq. ft. 
Restaurant and Fast Food-Standalone  9 spaces /1000 sq. ft. (gross floor area)  
 Restaurant or Bar uses with Retail and 
Service Use 

5 spaces /1000 sq. ft 

  

Development within the Overlay may seek approval of a parking reduction. Parking 
reductions are subject to City Council approval with a Concept Plan. Parking 
requirements may be modified to either reduce parking requirements by twenty percent 
or to apply a five (5) parking spaces per 1,000 square feet of gross floor area for all 
Commercial and Industrial Uses.  Parking reductions of up to 25% of the required 
parking may be approved for a site with shared parking or collective parking allowances 
for use by other adjacent commercial properties that are also approved for collective 
parking. Residential parking spaces may be approved as part of a shared or collective 
parking plan for commercial uses when there is at a minimum one parking space 
available per dwelling unit. 



SECTION 3. This ordinance shall be in full force from and after the date of its passage 
and approval. 
 
BE IT REMEMBERED that the above was read two times, by title only, PASSED AND 
APPROVED by a majority of the Smithville Board of Aldermen and APPROVED by the 
Mayor of the City of Smithville, Missouri this  day of , 2025. 
 
              

_____________________________ 
       Damien Boley, Mayor 
 
ATTEST        
 
 
___________________________ 
Linda Drummond, City Clerk 
 
First Reading:  
Second Reading   
  



 
EXHIBIT B 

 
STATEMENT OF PLANNING COMMISSION ON 169 SOUTH EMPLOYMENT OVERLAY 

DISTRICT REGULATIONS 
 

In accordance with 400.560.B, the Planning Commission recommends approval of the 
foregoing ordinance changes and makes the following statements: 
 
1.  These changes are consistent with the intent and purpose of these regulations. 
 
2.  The areas of the city which are most likely to be directly affected by these changes 

are limited to the areas identified in the Comprehensive Plan.   
 
3.  This amendment is made necessary to provide additional options to complete a 

major initiative for employment in accordance with the city’s Comprehensive Plan.   
 

 























                                                                                                              
 

Planning and Zoning Commision  
Procedural Summary 

 

 
REQUESTED COMMISSION ACTION: 
A motion to recommend to approve (or disapprove) the proposed Final plat which will 
create one additional lot in the development and adjust the boundaries of other lots. 
 
SUMMARY OF PROCEDURE: 
The application is to Replat lots 6A and 7 of Smithville MarketPlace into three total lots 
at 15700 N 169 Hwy, G and H. 
 
The Commission shall take into account the public hearing input, the staff report and 
any other documents or photographs provided at the hearing.  The staff report is 
organized with each of the Guidelines for Review identified in §425.275.A.4 of the Code 
of Ordinances with staff and engineering findings of each item for evaluation. 
 
In cases where the recommendation is for the disapproval of the plat, the applicant 
shall be notified of the reason for such action and what requirements shall be necessary 
to obtain the recommendation of approval of the Planning and Zoning Commission. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

 Ordinance                                  Contract 
 Resolution                                  Plans 
 Staff Report                                Minutes 
 Other: Guidelines for Review 

 

MEETING DATE: 10/14/2025 DEPARTMENT:  Development 

AGENDA ITEM:    Smithville MarketPlace Replat of Lots 6A & 7 Single Phase Final Plat. 
 



 
 

October 14, 2025 
Single Phase Final Plat for Clay County Parcel Id’s # 05-802-00-01-002.05 and 06    
 
 
Application for a Plat Approval – Smithville MarketPlace Replat of Lots 6A and 7; 
a Singly Phase Final Plat – 3 lots  
 
 Code Sections: 

425.285.A.4      Single Phase Final Plat Approval 
 
Property Information: 
   Address:  15700 N 169 Hwy, G and H  
   Owner:  Development Associates Smithville, LLC  
   Current Zoning: B-3 with a Conceptual Plan 
 
Public Notice Dates: 
 
1st Publication in Newspaper:  September 24, 2025 
Letters to Property Owners w/in 185’: September 24, 2025 
 
GENERAL DESCRIPTION: 
 
The property consists of two lots in the Smithville MarketPlace subdivision 
currently lying north of the Burger King restaurant.  The application is to adjust 
the boundary of the south lot, 6A, which is a replat of part of Lot 5 and Lot 6, as 
well as create a new Lot 7b, which is part of the adjusted lines of Lot 6A and a 
portion of existing Lot 7.  The creation of one new lot and adjusting the 
boundaries of the existing two lots is done to create two small lots north of the 
Burger King for two new businesses to enter the development.  If approved, the 
development will still have vacant land (Lot 7A) for further development. 
 



 
 
 
GUIDELINES FOR REVIEW – SINGLE PHASE SUBDIVISION FINAL PLATS See 
425.285.A.4 
 
The Planning Commission shall consider the following criteria in making a 
recommendation on the plat: 
a. The plat conforms to these regulations and the applicable provisions of the 
Zoning Ordinance and other land use regulations.  Yes, the layout complies 
with zoning and subdivision requirements for a conceptual plan 
subdivision. 
b. The plat represents an overall development pattern that is consistent with the 
goals and policies of the Comprehensive Plan. The Development pattern is 
similar to the existing development with minor modifications to the lot 
sizes and number. 
c. The development shall be laid out in such a way as to result in: 
 (1) Good natural surface drainage to a storm sewer or a natural 
watercourse.  The property is part of a commercial subdivision that is 
still in its’ development stages with an approved, full storm detention 
system that includes this project area(s).   
 (2) A minimum amount of grading on both cut or fill and preservation of 
good trees and other desirable natural growth.  Again, grading of the 
development is limited to level the areas in the lots but there isn’t any 
good vegetation in these areas that needs to be saved.   



 (3) A good grade relationship with the abutting streets, preferably 
somewhat above the street.    Each lot will have access to the existing 
private drive that runs north and south through the development.    
 (4)  Adequate lot width for the type or size of dwellings contemplated, 
including adequate side yards for light, air, access, and privacy.  Yes. 
 (5) Adequate lot depth for outdoor living space.  N/A. 
 (6) Generally regular lot shapes, avoiding acute angles.  To the extent 
possible, yes. 
 (7) Adequate building lots that avoid excessive grading, footings, or 
foundation walls.  Yes. 
d. The plat contains lot and land subdivision layout that is consistent with good 
land planning and site engineering design principles.  Yes. 
 
e. The location, spacing and design of proposed streets, curb cuts and 
intersections are consistent with good traffic engineering design principles. The 
private street is constructed and approved.   
f. The plat is served or will be served at the time of development with all 
necessary public utilities and facilities, including, but not limited to, water, sewer, 
gas, electric and telephone service, schools, parks, recreation and open space 
and libraries.  Yes, the land is currently served by all utilities previously 
constructed by the applicant in other phases.   
g. The plat shall comply with the stormwater regulations of the City and all 
applicable storm drainage and floodplain regulations to ensure the public health 
and safety of future residents of the subdivision and upstream and downstream 
properties and residents. The Commission shall expressly find that the amount of 
off-site stormwater runoff after development will be no greater than the amount 
of off-site stormwater runoff before development.  The proposed 
development meets this standard. 
h. Each lot in the plat of a residential development has adequate and safe access 
to/from a local street. N/A  
i. The plat is located in an area of the city that is appropriate for current 
development activity; it will not contribute to sprawl nor to the need for 
inefficient extensions and expansions of public facilities, utilities and services.  
Yes. 
j. If located in an area proposed for annexation to the City, the area has been 
annexed prior to, or will be annexed simultaneously with plat approval.  
Annexed. 
k. The applicant agrees to dedicate land, right-of-way, and easements, as may 
be determined to be needed, to effectuate the purposes of these regulations and 
the standards and requirements incorporated herein.  Yes, the plat includes 
the required dedications.     
l. All applicable submission requirements have been satisfied in a timely manner.  
Yes. 



m. The applicant agrees to provide additional improvements, which may include 
any necessary upgrades to adjacent or nearby existing roads and other facilities 
to current standards and shall include dedication of adequate rights-of-way to 
meet the needs of the City's transportation plans.  The development needs no 
current additional improvements.   
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
 Staff recommends APPROVAL of the proposed Final Plat based upon 
adherence to the conditions contained in this report.  
 
 



FO
U

N
D

 M
AG

 N
AI

L
(H

EL
D

)

FO
U

N
D

 1
/2

" R
EB

AR
N

O
 C

AP
 O

R
IG

IN
U

N
C

ER
TA

IN
 (H

EL
D

)

FO
U

N
D

 1
/2

" R
EB

AR
 C

AP
M

O
LC

 3
66

 (H
EL

D
 F

O
R

 L
IN

E)

FO
U

N
D

 M
AG

 N
AI

L
(H

EL
D

 F
O

R
 L

IN
E)

FO
U

N
D

 3
/8

" R
EB

AR
O

R
IG

IN
 U

N
C

ER
TA

IN
(H

EL
D

)

10
' S

PI
R

E 
G

AS
 E

AS
EM

EN
T

(B
K 

85
56

 P
G

 1
25

)

10
' S

PI
R

E 
G

AS
 E

AS
EM

EN
T

(B
K 

85
56

 P
G

 1
25

)

FO
U

N
D

 3
/8

" R
EB

AR
O

R
IG

IN
 U

N
C

ER
TA

IN
(H

EL
D

)

LO
T 

7A
51

91
28

.1
6 

S
Q

 F
T

11
.9

2 
A
C
R
ES

LO
T 

7B
71

19
3.

08
 S

Q
 F

T
1.

63
 A

C
R
ES

LO
T 

6B
44

39
6.

52
 S

Q
 F

T
1.

02
 A

C
R
ES

PO
IN

T 
O

F 
B

EG
IN

N
IN

G
N

E 
C

O
R

N
ER

 L
O

T 
6A

LO
T 

5 
A

N
D

 L
O

T 
6

SM
IT

H
VI

LL
E 

M
A

R
K

ET
PL

A
C

E

14
7.

64
'

14
7.

64
'

94
.9

4'

N
-1

17
05

61
.6

7
E-

27
64

75
8.

93
N

-1
17

05
58

.0
4

E-
27

64
61

6.
10

N
-1

17
04

02
.2

0
E-

27
64

15
7.

05

N
-1

17
02

13
.2

2
E-

27
64

03
9.

01

N
-1

16
99

78
.0

7
E-

27
64

20
9.

42

N
-1

16
99

57
.1

4
E-

27
64

32
1.

65

N
-1

16
95

86
.3

6
E-

27
64

40
2.

21

N
-1

16
96

48
.2

2
E-

27
64

81
9.

65

N
-1

16
96

06
.2

2
E-

27
64

83
5.

80

N
-1

16
96

05
.3

0
E-

27
65

07
1.

39

N
-1

16
97

97
.0

9
E-

27
65

00
5.

48

N
-1

16
98

32
.5

5
E-

27
64

99
1.

84

N
-1

16
99

78
.7

1
E-

27
64

93
5.

62

N
-1

17
01

50
.4

3
E-

27
64

95
4.

54

N
-1

17
04

09
.9

0
E-

27
64

81
0.

76

N
-1

16
98

25
.3

9
E-

27
64

36
6.

81

EA
ST

 L
IN

E 
N

E 
1/

4 
SE

C
 2

7-
53

N
-3

3W
W

ES
T 

LI
N

E 
N

W
 1

/4
 S

EC
 2

6-
53

N
-3

3W

N
E 

C
O

R
N

ER
 N

E 
1/

4
SE

C
 2

7-
53

N
-3

3W
N

W
 C

O
R

N
ER

 N
W

 1
/4

SE
C

 2
6-

53
N

-3
3W

S
M

IT
H

V
IL

LE
 3

N
-1

16
43

82
.3

2
E-

27
65

01
8.

74

S
EC

TI
O

N
 2

7-
53

N
-3

3W

N
W

 1
/4

N
E 

1/
4

S
E 

1/
4

S
W

 1
/4

PR
O

JE
C

T
LO

C
AT

IO
N

S
EC

TI
O

N
 2

6-
53

N
-3

3W

N
W

 1
/4

N
E 

1/
4

S
E 

1/
4

S
W

 1
/4

G
EN

ER
AL

 N
O

TE
S

VI
C

IN
IT

Y 
M

AP

LE
G

EN
D

JU
LY

 2
3,

 2
02

5

27
-5

3N
-3

3W
C

EN
TE

R
PO

IN
TE

A
D

D
R
ES

S
:

S
M

IT
H

V
IL

LE
, 

M
O

 6
40

89

FI
N

A
L 

PL
A
T

JO
B
 N

O
:2

5-
12

2S

A
LC

A
TL

A
S
 L

A
N

D
 C

O
N

S
U

LT
IN

G
S
U

R
V
EY

IN
G

 |
 C

IV
IL

 E
N

G
IN

EE
R
IN

G
 |

 D
R
O

N
E 

| 
C
A
D

at
la

sl
an

dc
on

su
lti

ng
.c

om
14

50
0 

Pa
ra

lle
l R

oa
d,

 U
ni

t 
R
, 

B
as

eh
or

 K
S
 6

60
07

K
S
 E

N
G

 C
O

A
: 

#
33

15
K
S
 S

U
R
 C

O
A:

 #
36

3
M

O
 E

N
G

 C
O

A
: 

#
20

22
01

40
84

M
O

 S
U

R
 C

O
A
: 

#
20

22
01

42
31

SE
CT

IO
N 

CO
RN

ER
BE

NC
HM

AR
K 

AS
 N

O
TE

D
FO

UN
D 

PR
O

PE
RT

Y 
CO

RN
ER

 A
S 

NO
TE

D
SE

T 
1/

2"
 X

 2
4"

 R
EB

AR
 C

AP
 A

LC
 M

O
 C

LS
 2

02
20

14
23

1

1.
 T

H
E 

B
A
S
IS

 O
F 

B
EA

R
IN

G
 S

YS
TE

M
 F

O
R
 T

H
IS

 S
U

R
V
EY

 I
S
 M

IS
S
O

U
R
I 

W
ES

T 
Z
O

N
E.

2.
 A

LL
 D

IS
TA

N
C
ES

 S
H

O
W

N
 H

ER
EO

N
 A

R
E 

G
R
O

U
N

D
 D

IS
TA

N
C
ES

 I
N

 F
EE

T.
3.

 W
E 

D
ID

 N
O

T 
O

B
S
ER

V
E 

A
N

Y 
C
O

N
S
TR

U
C
TI

O
N

 O
N

 T
H

IS
 P

R
O

PE
R
TY

.
4.

 T
H

E 
S
U

B
JE

C
T 

PR
O

PE
R
TY

 I
S
 L

O
C
A
TE

D
 W

IT
H

IN
 Z

O
N

E 
X
 A

C
C
O

R
D

IN
G

 T
O

 I
N

S
U

R
A
N

C
E

R
A
TE

 M
A
P 

N
O

. 
29

04
7C

00
14

E,
 W

IT
H

 A
 D

A
TE

 O
F 

ID
EN

TI
FI

C
A
TI

O
N

 O
F 

A
U

G
U

S
T 

3,
 2

01
5

IN
 C

LA
Y 

C
O

U
N

TY
, 

S
TA

TE
 O

F 
M

IS
S
O

U
R
I,

 W
H

IC
H

 I
S
 T

H
E 

C
U

R
R
EN

T 
FL

O
O

D
 I

N
S
U

R
A
N

C
E

R
A
TE

 M
A
P 

FO
R
 T

H
E 

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y 

IN
 W

H
IC

H
 S

A
ID

 P
R
EM

IS
ES

 I
S
 S

IT
U

A
TE

D
.

5.
 C

U
R
R
EN

T 
Z
O

N
IN

G
 -

 B
-3

6.
  

R
EF

ER
EN

C
E 

S
U

R
V
EY

-
S
M

IT
H

V
IL

LE
 M

A
R
K
ET

PL
A
C
E 

FI
N

A
L 

PL
A
T

-
S
M

IT
H

V
IL

LE
 M

A
R
K
ET

PL
A
C
E 

R
EP

LA
T 

LO
T 

5 
&

 L
O

T 
6

7.
  

M
IS

S
O

U
R
I 

O
N

E 
C
A
LL

 W
A
S
 C

A
LL

ED
 F

O
R
 T

H
IS

 S
U

R
V
EY

  
 T

IC
K
ET

 #
25

06
51

37
6.

8.
 B

EN
C
H

M
A
R
K
 #

1-
 C

EN
TE

R
 O

F 
M

A
N

H
O

LE
 L

ID
-E

LE
V
A
TI

O
N

: 
92

8.
58

 F
EE

T
9.

  
C
LO

S
U

R
E 

PR
EC

IS
IO

N
: 

  
1 

PA
R
T 

IN
 4

80
81

67
.1

43
10

. 
TH

E 
S
ET

B
A
C
K
S
 I

N
 T

H
IS

 D
IS

TR
IC

T 
S
H

A
LL

 B
E 

IN
 C

O
M

PL
IA

N
C
E 

W
IT

H
 T

H
E

R
EQ

U
IR

EM
EN

TS
 A

N
D

 L
A
YO

U
T 

PL
A
N

S
 I

N
 T

H
E 

S
IT

E 
PL

A
N

 R
EV

IE
W

 R
EG

U
LA

TI
O

N
S

C
O

N
TA

IN
ED

 I
N

 S
EC

TI
O

N
 4

00
.3

90
 T

H
R
O

U
G

H
 4

00
.4

40
 O

F 
TH

IS
 C

O
D

E.

SM
IT

H
V

IL
LE

 M
A

R
K

ET
PL

A
C

E
A
 P

O
R
TI

O
N

 O
F 

LO
T 

5A
 A

N
D

 L
O

T 
6A

, 
S
M

IT
H

V
IL

LE
 M

A
R
K
ET

PL
A
C
E 

R
EP

LA
T 

LO
T

5 
&

 L
O

T 
6 

A
N

D
 A

 P
O

R
TI

O
N

 O
F 

LO
T 

7,
 S

M
IT

H
V
IL

LE
 M

A
R
K
ET

PL
A
C
E,

 A
S
U

B
D

IV
IS

IO
N

 I
N

 T
H

E 
C
IT

Y 
O

F 
S
M

IT
H

V
IL

LE
, 

C
LA

Y 
C
O

U
N

TY
, 

M
IS

S
O

U
R
I.

R
EP

LA
T 

LO
T 

6A
 &

 L
O

T 
7

D
ES

C
R
IP

TI
O

N
A 

PO
RT

IO
N 

O
F 

LO
T 

5A
 A

ND
 LO

T 
6A

, L
O

T 
5 

AN
D 

LO
T 

6 
SM

IT
HV

IL
LE

 M
AR

KE
TP

LA
CE

, A
 S

UB
DI

VI
SI

O
N 

IN
 T

HE
 C

IT
Y 

O
F 

SM
IT

HV
IL

LE
, C

LA
Y

CO
UN

TY
, M

IS
SO

UR
I, 

AN
D 

A 
PO

RT
IO

N 
O

F 
LO

T 
7,

 S
M

IT
HV

IL
LE

 M
AR

KE
TP

LA
CE

, A
 S

UB
DI

VI
SI

O
N 

IN
 T

HE
 C

IT
Y 

O
F 

SM
IT

HV
IL

LE
, C

LA
Y 

CO
UN

TY
,

M
IS

SO
UR

I, 
PR

EP
AR

ED
 B

Y 
AN

DR
EA

 N
 W

EI
SH

AU
BT

, M
O

 P
LS

 2
02

50
03

64
0;

 B
EI

NG
 M

O
RE

 P
AR

TI
CU

LA
RL

Y 
DE

SC
RI

BE
D 

AS
 F

O
LL

O
W

S:

BE
GI

NN
IN

G 
AT

 T
HE

 N
O

RT
HE

AS
T 

CO
RN

ER
 O

F 
LO

T 
6A

, O
F 

SA
ID

 LO
T 

5 
 A

ND
 LO

T 
6,

 S
M

IT
HV

IL
LE

 M
AR

KE
TP

LA
CE

, A
LS

O
 K

NO
W

N 
TO

 B
E 

A
PO

IN
T 

O
N 

TH
E 

W
ES

T 
RI

GH
T 

O
F 

W
AY

 LI
NE

 O
F 

HI
GH

W
AY

 1
69

 A
S 

IT
 N

O
W

 E
XI

ST
S;

 T
HE

NC
E 

SO
UT

H 
21

°0
2'

21
” E

AS
T,

 A
LO

NG
 S

AI
D 

W
ES

T 
RI

GH
T

O
F 

W
AY

 LI
NE

, A
 D

IS
TA

NC
E 

O
F 

37
.9

9 
FE

ET
; T

HE
NC

E 
CO

NT
IN

UI
NG

 A
LO

NG
 S

AI
D 

W
ES

T 
RI

GH
T 

O
F 

W
AY

 LI
NE

, S
O

UT
H 

18
°5

8'
00

” E
AS

T,
 A

DI
ST

AN
CE

 O
F 

20
2.

80
 F

EE
T;

 T
HE

NC
E 

NO
RT

H 
89

°4
6'

40
” W

ES
T,

 A
 D

IS
TA

NC
E 

O
F 

23
5.

59
 F

EE
T 

TO
 A

 P
O

IN
T 

O
N 

TH
E 

W
ES

T 
LI

NE
 O

F 
SA

ID
 LO

T 
5

AN
D 

6 
SM

IT
HV

IL
LE

 M
AR

KE
TP

LA
CE

 S
UB

DI
VI

SI
O

N;
 T

HE
NC

E 
NO

RT
H 

21
°0

2'
07

” W
ES

T,
 A

LO
NG

 S
AI

D 
W

ES
T 

LI
NE

, A
 D

IS
TA

NC
E 

O
F 

45
.0

0 
FE

ET
,

TO
 T

HE
 S

O
UT

HE
AS

T 
CO

RN
ER

 O
F 

SA
ID

 LO
T 

 7
; T

HE
NC

E 
SO

UT
H 

81
°3

4'
15

” W
ES

T,
 A

LO
NG

 T
HE

 S
O

UT
H 

LI
NE

 O
F 

SA
ID

 LO
T 

7,
  A

 D
IS

TA
NC

E 
O

F
42

2.
00

 F
EE

T,
 T

O
 T

HE
 S

O
UT

HW
ES

T 
CO

RN
ER

 O
F 

SA
ID

 LO
T 

7;
 T

HE
 N

EX
T 

FI
VE

 (5
) C

O
UR

SE
S 

BE
IN

G 
O

N 
TH

E 
W

ES
TE

RL
Y 

LI
NE

 O
F 

SA
ID

 LO
T 

7;
TH

EN
CE

 N
O

RT
H 

08
°2

5'
25

” W
ES

T,
 A

 D
IS

TA
NC

E 
O

F 
24

1.
64

 F
EE

T;
 T

HE
NC

E 
NO

RT
H 

18
°5

5'
17

” W
ES

T,
 A

 D
IS

TA
NC

E 
O

F 
13

9.
27

 F
EE

T;
 T

HE
NC

E
NO

RT
H 

79
°2

6'
06

” W
ES

T,
 A

 D
IS

TA
NC

E 
O

F 
11

4.
16

 F
EE

T;
 T

HE
NC

E 
NO

RT
H 

35
°5

5'
48

” W
ES

T,
 A

 D
IS

TA
NC

E 
O

F 
29

0.
41

 F
EE

T;
 T

HE
NC

E 
NO

RT
H

31
°5

9'
23

” E
AS

T,
 A

 D
IS

TA
NC

E 
O

F 
22

2.
81

 F
EE

T 
TO

 A
 P

O
IN

T 
O

N 
TH

E 
NO

RT
HE

RL
Y 

LI
NE

 O
F 

SA
ID

 LO
T 

7;
 T

HE
NC

E 
NO

RT
H 

71
°1

4'
51

' E
AS

T,
AL

O
NG

 T
HE

 N
O

RT
HE

RL
Y 

LI
NE

 O
F 

SA
ID

 LO
T 

7,
 A

 D
IS

TA
NC

E 
O

F 
48

4.
78

 F
EE

T;
 T

HE
NC

E 
CO

NT
IN

UI
NG

 A
LO

NG
 S

AI
D 

NO
RT

HE
RL

Y 
LI

NE
, N

O
RT

H
88

°3
2'

45
” E

AS
T,

 A
 D

IS
TA

NC
E 

O
F 

14
2.

88
 F

EE
T,

 T
O

 T
HE

 N
O

RT
HE

AS
T 

CO
RN

ER
 O

F 
SA

ID
 LO

T 
7,

 S
AI

D 
PO

IN
T 

AL
SO

 B
EI

NG
 O

N 
SA

ID
 W

ES
T 

RI
GH

T
O

F 
W

AY
 LI

NE
 O

F 
HI

GH
W

AY
 1

69
; T

HE
 N

EX
T 

FO
UR

 (4
) C

O
UR

SE
S 

BE
IN

G 
AL

O
NG

 S
AI

D 
W

ES
T 

RI
GH

T 
O

F 
W

AY
 LI

NE
, A

LS
O

 B
EI

NG
 T

HE
 E

AS
T 

LI
NE

O
F 

SA
ID

 LO
T 

7;
 T

HE
NC

E 
SO

UT
H 

18
°5

1'
14

” E
AS

T,
 A

 D
IS

TA
NC

E 
O

F 
16

0.
38

 F
EE

T;
 T

HE
NC

E 
SO

UT
H 

28
°5

9'
37

' E
AS

T,
 A

 D
IS

TA
NC

E 
O

F 
29

6.
64

FE
ET

; T
HE

NC
E 

SO
UT

H 
06

°1
7'

18
” W

ES
T,

 A
 D

IS
TA

NC
E 

O
F 

17
2.

76
 F

EE
T;

 T
HE

NC
E 

SO
UT

H 
21

°0
2'

21
” E

AS
T,

 A
 D

IS
TA

NC
E 

O
F 

15
6.

60
 F

EE
T,

 T
O

 T
HE

PO
IN

T 
O

F 
BE

GI
NN

IN
G.

  C
O

NT
AI

NI
NG

 6
34

71
7.

76
 S

Q
FT

 O
R 

14
.5

7 
AC

RE
S 

M
O

RE
 O

R 
LE

SS
.

I 
D

EC
LA

R
E 

TH
A
T 

TO
 T

H
E 

B
ES

T 
O

F 
M

Y 
PR

O
FE

S
S
IO

N
A
L

K
N

O
W

LE
D

G
E 

A
N

D
 B

EL
IE

F,
 T

H
IS

 P
LA

T 
A
N

D
 S

U
R
V
EY

 M
EE

TS
 T

H
E

C
U

R
R
EN

T 
"M

IS
S
O

U
R
I 

S
TA

N
D

A
R
D

S
 F

O
R
 P

R
O

PE
R
TY

 B
O

U
N

D
A
R
Y

S
U

R
V
EY

S
" 

(2
0 

C
S
R
 2

03
0-

16
).

27
26

D
ED

IC
A
TI

O
N

:
TH

E 
U

N
D

ER
S
IG

N
ED

 P
R
O

PR
IE

TO
R
S
 O

F 
TH

E 
TR

A
C
T 

O
F 

LA
N

D
 D

ES
C
R
IB

ED
 H

ER
O

N
 H

A
V
E 

C
A
U

S
ED

 T
H

E 
S
A
M

E 
TO

 B
E

S
U

B
D

IV
ID

ED
 I

N
 T

H
E 

M
A
N

N
ER

 A
S
 S

H
O

W
N

 O
N

 T
H

E 
A
C
C
O

M
PA

N
YI

N
G

 P
LA

T,
 W

H
IC

H
 S

U
B
D

IV
IS

IO
N

 A
N

D
 P

LA
T 

S
H

A
LL

H
ER

EA
FT

ER
 B

E 
K
N

O
W

N
 A

S
 "

S
M

IT
H

V
IL

LE
 M

A
R

K
ET

P
LA

C
E 

R
EP

LA
T 

LO
T 

6
A

 &
 L

O
T 

7
 "

.

K
N

O
W

 A
LL

 P
ER

S
O

N
S
 B

Y 
TH

ES
E 

PR
ES

EN
TS

 T
H

A
T 

TH
E 

U
N

D
ER

S
IG

N
ED

 O
W

N
ER

S
 O

F 
TH

E 
LA

N
D

 S
H

O
W

N
 A

N
D

 D
ES

C
R
IB

ED
H

ER
EI

N
 H

A
V
E 

C
A
U

S
ED

 T
H

E 
S
A
M

E 
TO

 B
E 

S
U

B
D

IV
ID

ED
 I

N
 T

H
E 

M
A
N

N
ER

 S
H

O
W

N
 O

N
 T

H
IS

 P
LA

T,
 A

N
D

 D
O

 H
ER

EB
Y

D
ED

IC
A
TE

 T
O

 T
H

E 
C
IT

Y 
O

F 
S
M

IT
H

V
IL

LE
, 

M
IS

S
O

U
R
I,

 A
N

D
/O

R
 T

O
 T

H
E 

PU
B
LI

C
, 

A
LL

 S
TR

EE
TS

, 
A
LL

EY
S
, 

EA
S
EM

EN
TS

,
R
IG

H
TS

-O
F-

W
A
Y,

 A
N

D
 O

TH
ER

 P
U

B
LI

C
 A

R
EA

S
 A

S
 S

H
O

W
N

 H
ER

EO
N

, 
TH

A
T 

A
R
E 

N
O

T 
H

ER
ET

O
FO

R
E 

D
ED

IC
A
TE

D
, 

FO
R

PU
B
LI

C
 U

S
E 

FO
R
EV

ER
. 

EA
S
EM

EN
TS

 A
R
E 

H
ER

EB
Y 

R
ES

ER
V
ED

 F
O

R
 T

H
E 

IN
S
TA

LL
A
TI

O
N

 A
N

D
 M

A
IN

TE
N

A
N

C
E 

O
F 

U
TI

LI
TI

ES
,

D
R
A
IN

A
G

E 
FA

C
IL

IT
IE

S
, 

A
N

D
 O

TH
ER

 P
U

R
PO

S
ES

 A
S
 I

N
D

IC
A
TE

D
 O

N
 T

H
IS

 P
LA

T.

W
A
TE

R
 L

IN
E 

EA
S
EM

EN
T:

A
N

 E
A
S
EM

EN
T 

IS
 H

ER
EB

Y 
G

R
A
N

TE
D

 T
O

 T
H

E 
C
IT

Y 
O

F 
S
M

IT
H

V
IL

LE
, 

M
IS

S
O

U
R
I 

A
N

D
 I

TS
 A

U
TH

O
R
IZ

ED
 U

TI
LI

TY
 P

R
O

V
ID

ER
S

FO
R
 T

H
E 

PU
R
PO

S
E 

O
F 

LO
C
A
TI

N
G

, 
C
O

N
S
TR

U
C
TI

N
G

, 
O

PE
R
A
TI

N
G

, 
M

A
IN

TA
IN

IN
G

, 
R
EP

A
IR

IN
G

, 
A
N

D
 R

EP
LA

C
IN

G
 W

A
TE

R
LI

N
E 

FA
C
IL

IT
IE

S
, 

IN
C
LU

D
IN

G
 B

U
T 

N
O

T 
LI

M
IT

ED
 T

O
 U

N
D

ER
G

R
O

U
N

D
 P

IP
ES

, 
C
O

N
D

U
IT

S
, 

V
A
LV

ES
, 

H
YD

R
A
N

TS
, 

A
N

D
A
S
S
O

C
IA

TE
D

 A
PP

U
R
TE

N
A
N

C
ES

, 
U

PO
N

, 
O

V
ER

, 
U

N
D

ER
, 

A
N

D
 A

LO
N

G
 T

H
E 

S
TR

IP
(S

) 
O

F 
LA

N
D

 D
ES

IG
N

A
TE

D
 O

N
 T

H
IS

 P
LA

T
B
Y 

TH
E 

W
O

R
D

S
 “

W
A
TE

R
 L

IN
E 

EA
S
EM

EN
T”

 O
R
 T

H
E 

A
B
B
R
EV

IA
TI

O
N

 “
W

/E
”.

FL
O

O
D

PL
A
IN

:
TH

E 
PL

A
T 

IS
 L

O
C
A
TE

D
 W

IT
H

IN
 Z

O
N

E 
X
 A

C
C
O

R
D

IN
G

 T
O

 I
N

S
U

R
A
N

C
E 

R
A
TE

 M
A
P 

N
O

. 
29

04
7C

00
14

E,
 W

IT
H

 A
 D

A
TE

 O
F

ID
EN

TI
FI

C
A
TI

O
N

 O
F 

A
U

G
U

S
T 

3,
 2

01
5 

IN
 C

LA
Y 

C
O

U
N

TY
, 

S
TA

TE
 O

F 
M

IS
S
O

U
R
I,

 W
H

IC
H

 I
S
 T

H
E 

C
U

R
R
EN

T 
FL

O
O

D
IN

S
U

R
A
N

C
E 

R
A
TE

 M
A
P 

FO
R
 T

H
E 

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y 

IN
 W

H
IC

H
 S

A
ID

 P
R
EM

IS
ES

 I
S
 S

IT
U

A
TE

D
.

TH
E 

FI
N

A
L 

PL
A
T 

O
F 

S
M

IT
H

V
IL

LE
 M

A
R

K
ET

P
LA

C
E 

R
EP

LA
T 

LO
T 

6
A

 &
 L

O
T 

7
, 

 S
U

B
D

IV
IS

IO
N

 W
A
S

S
U

B
M

IT
TE

D
 T

O
 A

N
D

 A
PP

R
O

V
ED

 B
Y 

TH
E 

S
M

IT
H

V
IL

LE
 P

LA
N

N
IN

G
 A

N
D

 Z
O

N
IN

G
 C

O
M

M
IS

S
IO

N
 O

N
 T

H
E

__
__

__
__

__
__

 D
A
Y 

O
F 

__
__

__
__

__
__

, 
20

__
_.

(S
EA

L)
  

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

_
C
H

A
IR

M
A
N

(S
EA

L)
 

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

_
S
EC

R
ET

A
R
Y

TH
IS

 F
IN

A
L 

PL
A
T 

A
PP

R
O

V
ED

 B
Y 

TH
E 

B
O

A
R
D

 O
F 

A
LD

ER
M

EN
 O

F 
S
M

IT
H

V
IL

LE
, 

M
IS

S
O

U
R
I,

 T
H

IS
 _

__
__

__
__

__
_ 

D
A
Y

O
F 

__
__

__
__

__
__

, 
20

__
_.

(S
EA

L)
  

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
M

A
YO

R

A
TT

ES
T:

 _
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

 
  

C
IT

Y 
C
LE

R
K

EN
TE

R
ED

 O
N

 T
R
A
N

S
FE

R
 R

EC
O

R
D

 T
H

IS
 _

__
__

__
__

__
_ 

D
A
Y 

O
F 

__
__

__
__

__
__

, 
20

__
_.

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
_

C
O

U
N

TY
 R

EC
O

R
D

ER

A
C
K
N

O
W

LE
D

G
EM

EN
T:

D
EV

EL
O

PM
EN

T 
A
S
S
O

C
IA

TE
S
 S

M
IT

H
V
IL

LE
, 

LL
C

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
_

W
IL

LI
A
M

 D
 C

O
S
EN

TI
N

O
, 

PR
ES

ID
EN

T

S
TA

TE
 O

F 
__

__
__

__
__

__
, 

C
O

U
N

TY
 O

F 
__

__
__

__
__

__
, 

S
S

. B
E 

IT
 R

EM
EM

B
ER

ED
 T

H
A
T 

O
N

 T
H

IS
 _

__
__

__
__

__
_ 

D
A
Y 

O
F 

__
__

__
__

__
__

, 
20

__
_,

 B
EF

O
R
E 

M
E,

 A
 N

O
TA

R
Y

PU
B
LI

C
 I

N
 A

N
D

 F
O

R
 S

A
ID

 C
O

U
N

TY
 A

N
D

 S
TA

TE
, 

C
A
M

E 
__

__
__

__
__

__
 T

O
 M

E 
PE

R
S
O

N
A
LL

Y 
K
N

O
W

N
 T

O
 B

E
TH

E 
S
A
M

E 
PE

R
S
O

N
 W

H
O

 E
X
EC

U
TE

D
 T

H
E 

FO
R
EG

O
IN

G
 I

N
S
TR

U
M

EN
T 

O
F 

W
R
IT

IN
G

 A
N

D
 D

U
LY

A
C
K
N

O
W

LE
D

G
ED

 T
H

E 
EX

EC
U

TI
O

N
 O

F 
S
A
M

E.
 I

N
 T

ES
TI

M
O

N
Y 

W
H

ER
EO

F,
 I

 H
A
V
E 

H
ER

EU
N

TO
 S

ET
 M

Y 
H

A
N

D
A
N

D
 A

FF
IX

ED
 M

Y 
N

O
TA

R
IA

L 
S
EA

L 
TH

E 
D

A
Y 

A
N

D
 Y

EA
R
 A

B
O

V
E 

W
R
IT

TE
N

.

(S
EA

L)

M
Y 

C
O

M
M

IS
S
IO

N
 E

X
PI

R
ES

: 
__

__
__

__
__

__

R
EV

IS
ED

: 
S
EP

TE
M

B
ER

 1
1,

 2
02

5

 
 A

N
D

R
EA

W
EI

SH
A

U
B

T
 

PL
S-

20
25

00
36

40
N

U
M

B
ER

M
F

IS
O

S
E

O
T

U
A

R

T

I

S

PROFESSIO
N

A
L

 L
A

N
D

 S
URVEYOR

PL
S-

20
25

0
PL

S-
20

25
0

PPL
S-

2020222000
03

64
0

03
64

0
03

6436
466

N
U

M
B

ER

PROFFFEEEESSSSIIIOOO
N

AAA
L

L
A

N
AA

D
SU

RRVVRVVEYOR

09
/1

1/
20

25



 
 

STAFF REPORT 
     February 6, 2025 

Rezoning of Parcel Id # 05-504-00-01-010.01 
 
 
Application for a Zoning District Classification Amendment   
 
 Code Sections: 

400.560.C     Zoning District Classification Amendments 
 
 Property Information: 
   Address:  Approximately 212 KK Highway 
   Owner:   KKHWY LLC 
   Current Zoning: R-1P (R-1B sizes) 
   Proposed Zoning: AR 
 
 Public Notice Dates: 

1st Publication in Newspaper:   September 24, 2025 
Letters to Property Owners w/in 185’: September 24, 2025 

 
GENERAL DESCRIPTION: 
 
 The applicant submitted an application proposing to rezone approximately 107.5 
acres +/- from R-1P (R-1B sizes) to R-1D and R-2.  The proposed zoning classification 
allows additional density to reduce costs on the city sewer system.   
 
EXISTING ZONING: 
 
 The existing zoning is R-1P (R-1B sized lots) from March of 2006.  
 
CHARACTER OF THE NEIGHBORHOOD 400.560.C.1 
 
  The surrounding area is generally approximately 1 acre lots of non-conforming 
A-1 zoning with single family housing on the east of KK Highway, and R-1B single family 
zoned undeveloped farmland to the north and west.  The current zoning of the property 
is R-1P using a Preliminary Plat for 166 lots of R-1B sized lots. 



 
Existing     Proposed 
 
CONSISTENCY WITH COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AND ORDINANCES 400.560.C.2 
 
 The new Comprehensive Plan was approved on November 10th, 2020, and 
formally adopted as the policy of the City on November 17th, 2020.  That plan calls for 
the north part of the city to remain single family residential with increased densities 
when possible.  The city’s future land use map did not anticipate development of this 
land in the next 10 years, but sewer interceptor projects have escalated that timeline. 
  
ADEQUACY OF PUBLIC UTILITIES OR OTHER PUBLIC SERVICES 400.560.C.3 
 
The property is served with all utilities and will be constructed after the new gravity 
interceptor sewer is installed through the parcel to improve the overall sewer system.    
 
SUITABILITY OF THE USES TO WHICH THE PROPERTY HAS BEEN RESTRICTED UNDER 
ITS EXISTING ZONING 400.560.C.4 
 
 The current use is vacant single family residential, zoned R-1P (R-1B sized lots).  
The change would allow smaller lots in accordance with zone district updates from 2021, 
as well as some two-family lots.  The current use is farmland, and the approved 
preliminary plat has remained undeveloped since 2006.     
 
TIME THE PROPERTY HAS REMAINED VACANT AS ZONED 400.560.C.5 
 
 The property was zoned to the existing district classification in 2006 from A-1.   
 
COMPATIBILITY OF PROPOSED DISTRICT WITH NEARBY LAND 400.560.C.6 
 
 The property abuts State Highway KK with R-1B, non-conforming A-1 and R-1A 
with a commercial business across the highway and undeveloped farmland north and 



west.  The proposed district will significantly match the existing allowed uses on the 
property. 
 
EXTENT WHICH THE AMENDMENT MAY DETRIMENTALLY AFFECT NEARBY PROPERTY 
400.560C.7 
 
 No detrimental effects are anticipated to the adjacent property values. 
 
WHTHER THE PROPOSAL HAS A DISPROPORTIONATE GREAT LOSS TO ADJOINING 
PROPERTY OWNERS’ RELATIVE TO THE PUBLIC GAIN 400.560.C.8 
 
 No detrimental effects are anticipated to adjacent properties, with significant 
improvements to the sewer funding matrix. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
 Staff recommends APPROVAL of the proposed district. 
   
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
___________________________ 
Zoning Administrator 
 
 





FINDING OF FACTS AND 
CONCLUSIONS OF LAW 

Applicants:  HWYKK LLC 

Land Use Proposed: R-1B and R-2 

Zoning:  R-1B – (R-1 with a Preliminary Plat)

Property Location: Approximately 212 KK Hwy 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 400.560(C) of the Smithville Code, the Planning 
Commission does hereby make the following findings of fact based upon the 
testimony and evidence presented in a public hearing of the Planning and Zoning 
Commission of the City of Smithville, held on October 14, 202 , and presents these 
findings to the Board of Aldermen, with its’ recommendations on the application. 

Finding of Facts 

1. Character of the neighborhood. 
The surrounding area is generally approximately 1 acre lots of non-
conforming A-1 zoning with single family housing on the east of KK
Highway,, and R-1B single family zoned undeveloped farmland to the
north and west.  The current zoning of the property is R-1P using a
Preliminary Plat for 166 lots of R-1B sized lots.

2. Consistency with the City's Comprehensive Plan and ordinances. 
The new Comprehensive Plan was approved on November

10th, 2020, and formally adopted as the policy of the City on
November 17th, 2020.  That plan calls for the north part of the city to
remain single family residential with increased densities when
possible.

3. Adequacy of public utilities and other needed public services.
The property is served with all utilities and will be constructed after
the new gravity interceptor sewer is installed through the parcel to
improve the overall sewer system.

4. Suitability of the uses to which the property has been restricted under 
its existing zoning. 
The current use is vacant single family residential, zoned R-1P (R-1B
sized lots).  The change would allow smaller lots in accordance with
zone district updates from 2021, as well as some two family lots.  The
current use is farmland and the approved preliminary plat has
remained undeveloped since 2006.



5. Length of time the property has remained vacant as zoned. 
The property was zoned to the existing district classification in 2006
from A-1.

6. Compatibility of the proposed district classification with nearby 
properties. 
The property abuts State Highway KK with R-1B, A-1 and R-1A with a
commercial business across the highway and undeveloped farmland
north and west.  The proposed district will significantly match the
existing allowed uses on the property.

7. The extent to which the zoning amendment may detrimentally affect 
nearby property. 
No detrimental effects are anticipated to the adjacent property values.

8. Whether the proposed amendment provides a disproportionately great 
loss to the individual landowners nearby relative to the public gain. 
No detrimental effects are anticipated to adjacent properties, with
significant improvements to the sewer funding matrix.

9. That in rendering this Finding of Fact, testimony at the public hearing
on October 14, 2025, has been taken into consideration as well as the
documents provided.

Recommendation of the Planning Commission 

Based on the foregoing findings of fact, we conclude that: 

This application and the Rezoning of this property from R-1P (R-1B sizes) to
1D and R-2 is governed by Section 400.  of the zoning ordinance of

Smithville, Missouri.

The proposed zoning is compatible with the factors set out in Section
400.560(C) of the zoning ordinance.

The Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Smithville, Missouri
recommends approval of rezoning the property to A-R.



BILL NO.  3XXX-25    ORDINANCE NO.  ____________ 
 
AN ORDINANCE CHANGING THE ZONING CLASSIFICATIONS OR 
DISTRICTS OF CERTAIN LANDS LOCATED IN THE CITY OF SMITHVILLE, 
MISSOURI. 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Smithville received an application for rezoning the 
Riverplace subdivision off KK Highway on June 30, 2025; and 
 
WHEREAS, the public was notified by publishing in the CT paper and notices 
mailed to adjoining property owners on September 24th as required by state law. 
 
WHEREAS, a Public Hearing was conducted before the Planning Commission on 
October 14, 2025; and 
 
WHEREAS, the rezoning is to change the zoning from R-1P (R-1B sizes) to R-1D 
and R-2; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission presented its’ findings to the Board of 
Aldermen and recommended approval of the rezoning request; and, 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF 
THE CITY OF SMITHVILLE, MISSOURI, THAT: 
 
Section 1. Having received a recommendation from the Planning Commission, 
and proper notice having been given and public hearing held as provided by law, 
and under the authority of and subject to the provisions of the zoning ordinances 
of the City of Smithville, Missouri, by a majority council vote, the zoning 
classification(s) or district(s) of the lands legally described hereby are changed as 
follows: 
 
The property legally described as:   
 
The  Southwest  Quarter  of  the  Southeast  Quarter  of  Section  15,  Township   
53, Range  33;  that  part  of  the  West   One-half   of   the  Northeast   Quarter   
of   Section 22,  Township  53,  Range  33,  lying  North  of  Smith's  Fork  of  
Platte  River  and  that part of the East One - half of the Northeast  Quarter  of  
Section  22  lying  North  of Smith's  Fork  of  Platte  River  and  West  of  
Owen's  Branch  and  West  and  South  of the  gravel  road  as  it  is  now  
located  and   that  part   of  the  Southeast   Quarter   of the Southeast Quarter 
in  Section  15,  lying  West  of  the  gravel  road  all  in  Township 53, Range 33, 
being the  same  property  described  in  the  deed  recording  June  29, 1988 at 
Document No. G11339  in  the  Office  of  the  Recorder  of  Deeds  of  Clay 
County, Missouri, and all in the  City  of  Smithville,  Clay  County,  Missouri,  
subject  to that part, if any, in streets, roadways, highways or other public rights-
of-way. 



Changed from R-1P (R-1B sizes) to R-1D and R-2 in accordance with the attached plat  
 
Section 2.  Upon the taking effect of this ordinance, the above zoning changes 
shall be entered and shown upon the “Official Zoning Map” previously adopted 
and said Official Zoning Map is hereby reincorporated as a part of the zoning 
ordinance as amended. 
 
Section 3. This ordinance shall take effect and be in full force from and after 
the approval. 
 
PASSED THIS __________ DAY OF __________, 20_____ 
 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Damien Boley, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Linda Drummond, City Clerk 
 
First Reading:    / / 
 
Second Reading  / / 
 
 
 


